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The Thomas J. Flippin House (1900) is situated on the east slope of a narrow
valley in the foothills of the Coast Range created by the Clatskanie River, which
empties into the Columbia a few miles to the north. On its elevated site, the house
overlooks the town of Clatskanie and commands a panoramic view of Columbia River bottom
land to the northeast. Easily the grandest residence in the small logging and farming
community, the Flippin House was built and furnished with a fortune earned by the
West Oregon Lumber Company. Essentially an uncharacteristically formal example of
the Queen Anne Revival Style, the house, with its tall, hip-roofed dormers and conical-
roofed corner towers, might also be described as a hybrid of the Chateauesque.

Rectangular in plan, the two-story frame house hasa long lateral shingled gable
roof with central valley. Twin-peaked gable ends have bell-cast eaves overhanging
the clapboarded ground story, are trimmed with deep cornice moldings, and are filled
with pebble-dashed aggregate and patterned shingle siding. A pair of windows with
double-hung sash and round-arched heads lights either second story in the gable end.
Typical windows are trabeated.At either corner of the house front are imbricated
shingle-clad corner towers with bell-cast roofs with bracketed overhanging eaves and
knob finials. In between them, the facade is symmetrically organized around a central
entry sheltered by a Colonial Revival porch with paired Tuscan columns and upper deck
railing of turned balusters and posts. A hip-roofed pavilion gives onto the porch
deck from the second story and is flanked by a tall, hip-roofed dormer with typical
bracketed, overhanging eaves on either side. The house is approached by two straight
flights of concrete stairs leading from Tichenor Street in alignment with the central
entry.

"The Castle” contains 14 rooms and two fireplaces. In the basement, are rooms
used by the current owners for a ceramics room and storage of garden tools. The
latter is directly accessible from the outside.

At one time the upstairs rooms were used as boarding rooms. One of them has
a recess for a bed in one wall. The rooms are large, and several have their own
bathrooms.

To the right of the entry hall is the formal dining room with a circular parlor
in front and the kitchen behind. To the left of the front entry is the music room and
a circular room in front of it which, with its natural 1light, was probably a reading
room at one time. The entry stairhall contains one of the two fireplaces ornately
decorated with overmantel mirrors and ceramic tile around the fireboxes. The second
fireplace is in the dining room. Handsome, grained interior finish work, entirely
intact, is characteristic of the period and style of the house and includes
bead-molded base boards and door trim, paneled sliding doors and stairhall wainscoting,
picture moldings, and classical staircase newell posts and classical columns trimming
chimney fronts and overmantels.

Presently sharing the site are two mobile home units. These are located behind
the house, at the rear of the property, and are not visually intrusive from Tichenor
Street. Considered indispensable income-producing assets to sustain the area proposed
for nomination--temporarily, at least--the mobile homes are included as non-contribut-

ing features.
(continued)
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With City of Clatskanie support, the Thomas J. Flippin House has been offered
for sale to the Columbia County Council of Senior Citizens, Inc. with the understand-
ing that it be adapted as sensitively as possible for use as a health care and
senior citizens social services center and general meeting facility. It is planned
that the house would be operated as a partial historic-house museum, with senior
citizen volunteers serving as guides. The major renovation required would be
conversion of the basement to a kitchen and dining area with service capacity for
50 to 70 persons. The proposed project is considered important to an area numbering
its senior population at 1,000, and it is also viewed as a means of matching a
needful community service with a need to insure a long-term future use for the
town's preeminent landmark. ’
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The imposing residence with formaly-placed shingle-clad corner towers which was
completed for Tumberman Thomas J. Flippin in 1900 is significant to Clatskanie as an
intact example of Tate Queen Anne domestic architecture associated with one of the area's
pioneer families. Because of its exceptional grandeur in the logging and farming
community of ca. 1500 population, it is a well-known landmark generally referred to
as "The Castle". Situated near the confluence of the Caltskanie and Columbia Rivers
at the foot of the northeasterly slope of the Coast Range in Columbia County, the
settlement in which the house stands dates from the 1870s but was not incorporated until
1893.

The progenitor of the Flippin family in Oregon, James A. Flippin, was a member of
the Applegate overland party which pioneered the Southern Immigrant Route in 1845.
Flippin, then 19 years of age, soon went to California rather than taking up a donation
land claim in the Willamette Valley. He was at Sutter's Mill when gold was discovered.
He panned gold until he had gleaned a small fortune--a little over $5,000. Flippin
then secured passage on a sailing vessel bound for New Orleans via Cape Horn. He re-
turned to his home in Tennessee and married a local girl. The newlyweds, their
respective parents and three of Flippin's brothers started overland for Oregon, but the
trip was curtailed by an outbreak of cholera in the wagon train. The young married
couple's respective parents and their first child all succumbed. The Flippins returned
to Independence to regroup for another crossing the following year. Flippin's brothers
split off at Fort Bridger and headed for California, while James and his wife continued
to Oregon, where they settled at Cedar Mi1l in Washington County. According to his
grandson, "James A. Flippin had a built-in curiosity and thirst for knowledge. He was
a great reader and a lifelong student, especially of law. His knowledge of law was
highly regarded by Washington County pioneers who often brought their desputes to him
instead of going to court."

James Flippin's son, Thomas J. Flippin, for whom "The Castle” was built, started
his career as a skid greaser on a bull-team logging operation on the Columbia River in
neighboring Columbia County. Flippin forebears had been acquaintances of Daniel Boone
and had followed the celebrated pioneer into Kentucky and Tennessee. One of Thomas
Flippin's great uncles crossed the Mississippi and founded the town of Flippin, Arkansas.
Of Thomas Flippin's seven brothers and sisters--all born at Cedar Mill, Will was the
only one who had a part in building "The Castle". His main occupation was hand-hewing
shingles, and it was he who fashioned the original roofing shingles and the imbricated
siding for his brother's grand house.

(continued)
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Thomas F1lippin married Florence Eliott, one of a hardy, local family of loggers
and farmers, and took up a timbered claim about five miles from Clatskanie. Accord-
ing to T. J. Flippin, Jr., young Flippin acquired an adjoining 200 acres of timber
which "stretched their land across Roaring Creek, where someone had built a mi1l dam
and the frame for a sawmil1"and later abandoned the enterprise. Portland banker and
financier J. C. Ainsworth backed Flippin's bid to equip the mill, and thus, in 1888,
was founded the West Oregon Lumber Co., which Flippin operated successfully for
twelve years before selling his interest.

The Thomas Flippins acquired property adjoining the school yard in Clatskanie
when their children approached school age. Material for the new house and barn in
town was manufactured by Flippin himself when choice logs came through his mill.

The barn, later moved from its original site and remodeled for residential use, is
not included in the nomination. While "The Castle" was under construction, Flippin
sold his interest in the West Oregon Lumber Company and moved to the site which is
the subject of the nomination. His son, T. J. Flippin, Jr., described the move into
the new house in a 1976 reminiscence.

We moved from the sawmill cookhouse into the Castle in late spring of 1900.
The kitchen was in process of being painted and the carpenters were still work-
ing on the door and window trim in the first floor bedroom. It was being made
by hand, on a long workbench, with a variety of hand planes, cabinet scrapers
and sandpaper.

Here was paradise for two Tittle kids. The room became our headquarters.
The floor was littered knee deep with yellow fir shavings that were so curly, so
adaptable; that smelled so good and felt so good after playing so long in
sawdust and bark chiggers.

When the carpenters were through and started to clean up the shavings, there
was a big howl from the kids. Mother told us to take all the shavings up to
our playrooms in the second story of the round towers. We were generous to
~ourselves and never did give up our shavings as long as we lived there.

From my father's viewpoint, progressing from a skidgreaser on a bull-team
skidroad at the age of 17 to a home 1ike this (with a backlog of money to
support it) at about the age of 35, was a tremendous accomplishment. He was
proud of it.

(continued)
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From my mother's viewpoint, the house represented more than she had bargained
for and a way of life she didn't care for. Here was no opportunity to use her
many skills as a pioneer woman. Keeping a town house and entertaining was pretty
tame business. She left all the housework she could to hired help and spent
most of her time landscaping the yard.

Thomas Flippin and his wife eventually separated, and their house was sold.

The present occupants of "The Castle" acquired the property in 1959, finding it
in unaltered condition and resolving not to contribute any substantial changes of
their own. The Columbia County Council of Senior Citizens, Inc. proposes to acquire the
property and adapt it for use as a multi-purpose Senior Center.
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" Beginning at a point on the Easterly line of Lot 7, Tichenor's First Addition to the
City of Clatskanie, Columbia County, Oregon, said point of beginning being more
particularly described as being North 200 East 82 feet from the Southeast corner of
said Lot 7; running thence West to a point in the West Tine of Lot 7 that is
Northeasterly 160 feet from the Southwest corner of said Lot 7; thence Northeasterly
on the West 1line of lot 7 a distance of 120.5 feet to Northwest corner of said Lot
75 thence North 200 00' East on a Northeasterly extension of the West line of Lot 7,
34.6 feet to the Southwest corner of land conveyed to Arthur B. Holmen, et ux, by
deed recorded August 7, 1946, in Book 87, page 565, Deed Records; thence South 69°
58' East along the Southerly line of said Arthur B. Holmen tract, 222.8 feet to West
Tine of Tichenor Street; thence South 20° 00' West along West line of Tichenor Street
and East line of Lot 7 to the point of beginning.



